
Session 12 
February 15h, 2022 
 
It is exactly 8:00 PM :) 
 
Lera asks Hugh if he wants to bathe, as she can wash his hair with soap and make it luxurious 
and silky smooth, Sildar agreeing even tho he doesn’t know jack shit, and she spends 10 mins 
taking off her armor while Hugh takes 10 secs 
 
As sorennar walks besides Sildar, COLT STILL ARM LINKED WITH SORENNAR , he said 
‘BTW, don’t let it be said that Drow make empty threats’ 
Yanks him from  
Colt, looking between them: should I be here? 
After 2 secs he’ll try to be let go from Colt, the kiss lasts FIVE SECONDS 
LAbawkFAEJLBJKABVD  
Sildar stammers over his words, like ‘what?’ 
 

 

 
 



Sorennar: ‘mmmmm just as good as I imagined, perhaps you’ll let me taste something else 
tonight. 
I’ll taste something just as good tonight’ 
Sorennar FUCKIN WALKS AWAY 
 
(Lera has decided then and there that she no longer has any ability to be with Sildar, and will do 
everything in her power to be wingwoman so long as Sorennar wants it) 
 
Insight checks from Hugh and Sorennar: he’s not showing anything in his pants 
 
Sorennar asks Sildar if he wants to bathe, since water is getting cooler now, and convinces him 
finally.  
 
Colt was NOT expecting Sorennar to do that while he has his arms HOOKED around him 
 
-Baby hyena is knocked tf out- 
 
Colt takes a sec to take off his coat, then gets in the water ;-; Lera fuckin still taking off her 
armor 
Sorennar also is in the water but he took off his cape and folded it so embroidery is outside, 
golden text inside 
 
Sildar: did you want to talk about it? 
Sorennar: about what? 
Sildar: about.. That 
Hugh: to be fair he did say he will do that if u dont stfu 
Sildar: thats right I didn’t take that seriously 
Sorennar: so what did you want to talk about? 
Sildar: nothing. Maybe we can talk about it later 
HE ROLLS A NAT 20 IN DECEPTION 

 
 
Sildar says that maybe he can talk about it later, Sorennar says MAYBE THEY CAN HAVE a 
night shift together, at least one, since Sildar is a human and needs to sleep more, but Sildar 
says so does Sorennar (he just gotta have the last word huh). Sorennar brings up their 
agreement in the basement, and Colt asks if he still needs him to keep watch because he 
doesn’t think so after this. Sorennar recalls that he was staying in the sleep position in the inn to 



protect him, and thanks him before kissing him on the forehead. Sorennar says that if he hears 
noises, best to roll over and go back to sleep 
 
Sildar is flustered and gets out of the water :> blushing Sildar 
 
Sorennar congratulates Colt on winning the swimming contest, Colt is happy as he never 
expected to be this good 
Hugh: FUCK YOU 
 
Colt is from Neverwinter, but he was in Luskan before the campaign started  
 
Hugh asks if Colt can run on water, who thinks it’ll be cool, but he can't RUN on water even if he 
runs very fast (Sorennar throws a pebble across the surface to demonstrate the reactive force of 
water and resistance, as well as the gravity pull) but Colt is still hesitant lol but fuckin does it bc 
mama and papa didnt raise no bitch 
 
Colt goes into the dashing pose, double dash into the water. As he puts his first foot, he goes 
right below the water, instantly falls into water and walks within the water 
Colt: Close! 
Alkbaeknakbvbkja  
 
Sildar: Maybe if you train hard enough, you can? 
Colt: oh yeah maybe 
Sorennar: Can you, Sildar? 
Colt: YA CAN YOU? 
Sildar: I haven’t trained much in water walking  
ALEFJALJFAKD 
 
Lera washes Hugh’s head, and also teaches him basic scalp massage techniques, Hugh is 
happy and is LEARNING. They discuss how Aien was ungrateful for Hugh’s efforts, and how ear 
massages are more painful than not for the inexperienced. Hugh says he won’t even give Aien 
another massage because of how rude he was, and Lera suggests he give head to Sorennar 
instead. Hugh calls Sorennar over to put his learning into practice 
 
Lera: and GENTLY, you have greater strength than the average person 
Sorennar: I love this party 
-Hugh massages Sorennar’s head, the head-head- 
Sorennar: don’t you both know the meaning now? 
Hugh: Yes 
Lera: It’s like Colt says, words can have multiple meanings and we’re choosing to uhhh take it in 
a different way 
Sildar: it does not  
Lera: what do you mean SIldar? I thought you enjoyed giving Sorennar head, like 3 times! 
(loudly) 



Sorennar: I thought so too. 
Sildar: HEAD massages 
Lera: YAAA Headddd??  
Sildar: No! 
Lera: Yes! 
Sorennar: It’s just a shortened form of the word 
Lera: its OUR word, Sildar, words are what you give them meaning  
Hugh: we KNOW what it means, Sildar, embrace it 
Sildar: just please don’t go around saying that in public 
Hugh: I’m gonna go to the next inn we get into and letting everyone know you like giving head 
Sorennar: that will be stonehill, are you familiar with the owner sildar? 
Sildar: yes, and don’t  
Hugh: too late I’m already doing it.  
Sorennar: I assure that you would be quite pleased to know new facts about his…friend 
Sildar: alright I will tell him someone is lying, and we all know who that someone is 
Hugh: Sildar Hallwinter, magnificent giver of head! 
Aildslfsfjlsjslfnsfljsln 
 
Sorennar: thats a WONDERFUL title 
Sildar: I swear to the gods if you actually say that…. 
Lera: WHICH gods? :> 
Sorennar: all of them? 
Sildar: exactly 
Lera: y’know sildar if Hugh actually says this, you can correct them, that its a head massage, 
since y’know its OUR word now 
Sildar: the people that I cannot correct are those that walk by and hear this 
Lera; just say it outloud 
Sildar: Lera, HOW are you condoning this? 
-Lera is laughing- 
Lera: Sildar, its not… y'know, you shouldn’t care too much what people think, at the end of the 
day, the people that matter, just explain to them that you’re decent at giving a head massage 
Sorennar: he is VERY good at giving a head massage  
Lera: yeah exactly, see you have a testimony! 
Sildar: you know I still have a reputation to uphold, being a member of the lords alliance and all 
Hugh: Why would you think your reputation would be ruined in any way? 
Sildar: It absolutely would, in every way actua;ly  
Hugh: how? 
Sildar: bc giving head is implying such a different act  
Hugh ok what's wrong with that 
Sildar: that act! 
Sorennar: would you rather be known as a selfish lover, Sildar? 
Sildar: yes.​
-Lera gives Sorennar a look of pity- 
Sorennar: thats disappointing 



Sildar: just because I’m known as one doesn’t mean I am  
Lera: you’re not okay with being known as the one who gives head? Sildar! Is the lords alliance 
so fickle that one of their members giving head is the downside to their whole career? 
Sildar: a joke or not, I’d appreciate you not saying this about the Lord’s alliance 
Lera: ok fine 
 
Hugh: have u ever given someone head? 
Sildar: no  
Sorennar: no?? 
Lera: Sorennar is RIGHT THERE Sildar! 
Sildar: Lera you’re free to do it! 
Lera: I did, in the cart, I already did! 
Sildar: no I meant… not YOUR version of it  
Hugh: yeah I meant the other way too 
Sildar: go for it, we’re all here, we can watch! 
Lera: Sorennar is currently getting head from Hugh so… 
Sildar: well theres two different heads, he’s getting one kind and you can provide the other 
Lera: SILDAR!  
Colt: this water is getting very hot 
-Colt has been chilling in the water XD- 
 
Hugh: So I'm curious sildar, if someone were to give you head, you wouldn’t return the favor? 
Sildar: I would, like I said I’m not a selfish lover 
-disbelief noises from everyone- 
Lera: well that's not what you were fine with the implications of  
Hugh: you’d rather be known as one but not be one? That doesn’t make any sense 
Sildar: it is what it is 
 
Lily: has he read books, chris, does he know how to-? 
Chris: He KNOWS of the SEX! 
 
-Sildar has been blushing :>- 
 
 
Sildar asks if they’re still traveling or staying in, Hugh asks if he’s tired, Sildar is acting difficult 
according to Hugh, saying he is a lil tired. Sorennar and Lera also say they’re feeling tired, 
Sildar says they can push the rothe tomorrow, and Hugh inquires about Sorennar not traveling 
at night, so Sorennar gives a big yawn lol. Hugh tells him to make the decision, so Sildar says 
they’ll travel for two hours. Lera asks Hugh if he likes having his hair braided or tied (after 
finishing washing his hair), he says he’s never had that done before, so Lera promises to do that 
after his hair dry 
 
HUGH DUCKS SORENNAR’S HEAD UNDER WATER!! ‘Hold your breath!’ 
Sorennar immediately tries to surface, and says ‘what was that??’ 



Hugh says he thinks it’ll be funny, he has a huge grin on his face 
Sorennar is coughing and looks pretty terrified, ‘please never do that again’, then walks off 
Hugh says he’s sorry 
 
Everyone gets out of the water, Lera checks on Hyena, asks the party about what to do with it. 
Hugh tricks everyone into thinking that Hyena are just like goats, since he feeds goats meat :)) 
fuckin got us all lmaaoooo he told us he was joking. Name suggestions: Max, Max-pot, biscuit, 
sausage, gravy, and truffle. Biscuit gets 2 votes, Gravy gets 4. Hugh found the turtle, therefore 
he gets to name it, and he chose Truffle 
-Transcript for SAUSAGE NAME- 
 
Lera: SAUSAGE! Who likes sausage?  
(yes I am now realizing how it sounds, leave ME ALONE) 
Sorennar: ME 
-Colt stares at Sildar- 
-Sorennar attempts to eye contact with Sildar as Sorennar raises his hand- 
-Sildar DOES NOT raise his hand- 
Lera: Colt, do you like sausage? 
Colt: sausage is pretty good 
Sildar: I mean sausage is very good (EHE), but I think Gravy is a very good name for it 
 
Sausage gets 2 votes total  
 
We vote on names, in the end Gravy for Hyena, and Truffles for the turtle  
 
Sorennar and Lera go to the Hyena, Sorennar tries to leave bc big bad evil drow isn’t gonna 
deal with a cutie hyena, Lera calls out to him before he runs away and asks for help since he 
was good with it before. He gives her little bits of jerky to feed the hyena, who wakes up to the 
smell of it and eats it before scurrying away bc Soren and Lera were standing over it, then lera 
approaches cautiously and feeds him. Sorennar calls everyone over to feed it 2 pieces of bits, 
Hugh goes first, then Colt (who also tries giving it gold??), then Sildar (who feeds it BOTH), and 
then Hyena approaches us for more. Lera gives another one, then walks backwards to the cart 
for Hyena to follow. Hyena then fuckin vomits. Sorennar also fashions a rope/leash, and tries to 
feed and tie it a bit in the chest, he rolls well in animal investigation 
 
Hugh rolls a 3, but it becomes a 1 :< Hugh moves it off the road, along with the others 
Sorennar also checks the body for anything related to the underdark, just heavily scarred 
creatures 
Sorennar asks Hugh to go wash his hands after handling the dead corpses, and he goes to do 
so after worry over parasites (Hugh: eewwww!) 
 
Sorennar goes to offer his hand to Sildar after casting dancing lights, while Sildar accepts (even 
tho he can see with dim lights) 
 



Cart is a SUPER tight fit 
 
Lera grabs the leash Sorennar left, and gently puts the hyena on the cart 

 
 
SUPER tight fit 
 
We are leaving now 
 
It is 9:25 PM, we will travel for 2 hours on the road,  
 
 
Sorennar receives head from Siildar again, he rolls a fuckin TWO (2), doesn’t poke out his eye 
tho, just massages hard bc he is an embarrassed boi 
Sorennar calls out his shit, Sildar is embarrassed and stops, Sorennar asks him to run his 
hands through his hair. Sildar says he will improve on head massage and on ‘the other thing’, to, 
IMPLYING HE’S GOING TO PRACTICE GIVING HEAD!!, causing Sorennar to mini-combust 
and be quiet 
 
Hugh gives advice to sildar to ‘ just the tips….use only the tips of the finger’ 
Sildar is debating if he should listen to Hugh after what he did to Aien, and continues doing  
 
Lera rolls with disadvantage because of dim lights, AND YO she gets nat 20 (23), then a total of 
22 with disadvantage for perception 

 
Hugh rolls a 9, Colt rolls a 12 
 
We continue down the High road, coming to the fork where the highroad continues South, and a 
sign that says triboar trail sign heading East. The path isn’t as nice as the high road, but unlike 



triboard trail it doesn’t have its wear. We reach that point an hour into trave, and we continue 
traveling down the triboard trail, same landscape, smaller hills and trees, we don’t spot anything, 
just some movement in the woods from wild life, nothing looking to attack. After another hour 
passes, we stop to sleep 
 

 
GRAVVYYY look how FUCKIN CUTE AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 
 
It is 11:33 PM 
 
 
Hugh goes to put the fish and turtle a bit away, Sildar asks for a fire, Sorennar leads him by the 
hand, and Lera goes to feed Rothe some hay for a change. 
 
Sorennar alludes that he can talk to Hyena’s, much to Hugh’s and Colt’s enthusiasm, and they 
ask him to talk to Gravy. Sorennar calls the Hyena a ‘good boy’ in undercommon, and Colt asks 
him what Gravy thinks of him. Sorennar rates him 2/10, and that if he gives it more food, he’ll 
like him more. Colt gives him a bit more of the food, and Sorennar says that if Gravy pukes, he 
hopes it'll be on colt instead (??) 
 
Sildar will take first watch with Soren (Hugh: OFC you will. You can give soren head its ok), 
Hugh takes second with Soren, then wake up Lera and Colt, then Colt takes final two hours 
 
Sorennar threatens Hugh to ‘don’t make me kiss you too’ when Hugh asks since he’s leader . 
Sorennar don’t like it, so colt calls him ‘captain sorennar’ sounds better, even moreso than 
commander. 
 
Colt also says prince works, but Sorennar says its not a good look, Colt smooth af says that he 
looks good in everything. Sildar agrees that Captain Sorennar of the Fabulous Five and Lords 
Alliance is a good title, causing surprise from Sorennar over LORDS ALLIANCE. Sildar says to 
NOT WORRY ABOUT IT and when he gets to Phandalin, he’ll take care of the paperwork 
ANLFKAELJADLJLBSV ADOPTED?!?!?!? He’s teasing, he does want Sorennar to make a 
choice! 



 
Lera offers to try something fo Hugh’s condition, fuckin realizes she cant yet bc APPARENTLY 
gotta wait until morning and pray, then says nvm lol can I try tomorrow?? Hugh is Confusion 
He gives everyone else the option if they want, but not sorennar, sorennar gets no FREEDOM 
OF CHOICE, he WILL be a member, yes sirree! 
 
Sildar fuckin brings up Lera asking him for a private convo abjakbfkafc shit I forgor  
Hugh offers to also join while Lera braids his hair like she promised, so she says yes 
Sorennar is interested, but Hugh is so damn perceptive he distracts Sorennar with a convo 
about goats!! 
THANK YOU HUGH YOURE AMAZING IM LOVE U!!!  
 
Hugh has a convo with Sorennar about goats birthing, then his family raising goats for hundreds 
of years, and how they both mine and have their goat farm. Colt asks about a goat festival, but 
they don't, but Hugh is excited for it and he and Colt start brainstorming ideas on the festival.  
 
Sorennar asks how close he is to his family, if he knows his extended family, Hugh says he 
knows them and greets them if he sees them in the way. Sorennar is shooketh at healthy family 
dynamics and festivals (minus nutila I guess), and shooketh at the idea that they can just,,, send 
letters lmao 
 
Sorennar asks about Eter Caps and how Hugh was like their neighbor, and Hugh says it's 
because his neighbors are noisy and ugly lol. 
 IS THAT WHY??? 
Hugh: my neighbors are called the Ogblelockers, and basically, they fuckin suck 
Sorennar: How so? 
Hugh: well, they also farm goats, we share the goats 
Sorennar: Oh 
Hugh: They say the goats are theirs, we say they are ours, so it's been happening for so long 
that people think it's all of ours goats. They’re assholes. But like y'know they'll come out one 
morning and start talking shit, being assholes, how stinky we are, how great they are, and if 
anyone is around they’re nicer to them like ‘oh how are you today?’ 
Sorennar: does your family share the same rancour towards them? 
Hugh: whats that mean? 
Sorennar: hatred 
Hugh: yes, they’re assholes. When we go check on the goats they come in and be like ‘hey 
fuckfaces get away from our goats!’. I don’t know why they keep saying this about our goats 
Sorennar; why not challenge them to a fight for the goats 
Hugh: that doesn’t work this way. We share the same fence 
Colt: why not build a fence in the middle? 
Sorennar: the goal is to get ALL the goats, Colt 
 



So basically Hugh says the goats keep wandering around, and there will be too many, and if 
they put them in one fence they will destroy the fence. The goats do have a bigger area like this, 
and hugh adds 
 
Hugh: if you ever visit and meet a Thurna or a Thurma , tell them they suck 
Colt: Can I steal from them? 
Hugh: yes 
Colt: Ok, I’ll steal their money, and their tomatoes, their whole tomato plants 
 
Sorennar says he’ll make a song about them telling the truth of how they’re goat thieves, lol. 
Hugh will dance to the song past their house and be like ‘haha stinky bitches’ 
 
It is 11:58 PM (for convo with goats) 
 
Lera and Sildar convo 
 
Basic things to discuss: apologize for what happened back in the goblin cave, how if they had 
more time and he was more conscious, she would have asked him for what he thinks the 
goblins who tortured him should get as punishment, since they hurt him badly. She’ll inquire 
about if Sildar thinks she did the right thing, giving the goblins a chance since its a sucky 
situation overall. What would Sildar do? 
 
 
Sildar might have agreed at the moment, but cant bring himself to do it 
Sildar would not have wanted them tortured,  
-A swift death  
-Even if the victim wants that, thats not something the victim should do, they would regret it 
-How would you decide for yourself if they wouldn’t regret it in the future? 
-Sildar is agitated- 
Sildar thinks death should be the limit, no torture 
 
-he looks upset, agitated, angry, disappointed- 
-He begins raising his voice, everyone can hear- !!... 
 
Sildar thinks that even if someone close like family or friends get something horrible done to 
them, they would also just die 
 
Lera apologizes for making Sildar angry and upset 
Sildar finished with ‘do what you think is right. Do you think Helm would?’ 
 
Sildar walking by visually he seems fine, but with Sorennar insight (14) he can tell he looked 
upset walking back but put together as he walks to the group 
 
It is now 1:06 AM 



 
Colt, Hugh, and Lera go to get ready for bed, Hugh sets up his tent 
 
Lera goes to get her bed, and Sorennar comes up to check on her, she tries to play it off its fine 
but Sorennar says that Sildar is scary. She asks if he was the same to Sorennar, but Sorennar 
says he seemed angrier with Lera (since he raised his voice). Lera says she never saw Sildar 
as terrifying before, but this was very unexpected and she blames herself for it, as she thinks 
she should take into account people’s sensitivity to certain topics and be more thoughtful. She 
thanks Sorennar for  worrying about her, and Sorennar once again offers her that he can listen 
to her troubles, she thanks him again, and says goodnight to Sorennar, Colt, Hugh, pets gravy, 
then quickly walks past the fire and Sildar, saying a quick goodnight and avoiding eye contact. 
Sildar says goodnight, but sounds annoyed bc Lera is avoiding him   
 
Sildar: the belief that self sacrifice is okay 
Sorennar: next time we fight an oblex, I will keep that in mind 
Sildar: wonderful weather isn’t it   
​ THIEEEFFFF 
-Weather is chilly, fall thing, its clear and not raining- 
Sorennar: it's beautiful isnt it, we don't get views like that in underdark 
Sildar: never thought of that before, can’t imagine not seeing this every night 
Sorennar: oh it's not so bad, we have rocks 
Sildar: Ah yes rocks, gleaming in the rocks 
Sorennar: well with the fungi, we had a cave that I used to bring my younger brother to, it would 
glow all over the ceiling, it looked like the stars 
Sildar: that sounds beautiful, maybe one day I can see it for myself 
Sorennar: you, in the underdark? 
Sildar: yes, when I can defend myself properly  
Sorennar: you want to go down there? 
Sildar: well, like you said and our talk at Willow, lords alliance has yet to reach underdark 
Sorennar: for good reason 
Sildar: good reason yes, but its something that needs to happen 
Sorennar: who will rally the troops rally to certain death? 
Sildar: maybe not death, but maybe I will take the lead 
Sorennar: alright then maybe I can leave you my notes before I leave 
Sildar: I would appreciate that, maybe then the people who plan to go down there have a better 
chance to survive 
Sorennar: Do you mind? It;s been an exhausting day 
-Lays on his lap- 
Sildar: Would you like a head massage?  
Sorennar: call it by its name, sildar 
Sildar: don’t encourage their behavior, we would get kicked out of Phandalin in 2 days 
Sorennar: I have it on good grounds that we wont be kicked out of phandalin for giving head 
Sildar: oh do you now? 
Sorennar: lets just say the town was very welcoming, but lets just enjoy the moment 



Sildar: I agree, its nice to lay down, especially before we get to phandalin 
Sorennar: and what is that? 
Sildar: so many things, gundren, the red bandits,  

 
Sorennar gets 16 perception 
 
Sildar: so what do you plan to do after phandalin? 
Sorennar: stay with.. The party of course 
-He smiles sadly- 
Sorennar: as I promised Lera 
-Its an obvious lie from Sorennar- 
 
Sildar: can you at least tell me what you’re actually gonna do? 
Sorennar: well… I have reason to believe that I will be called away quite soon 
Sildar: back to the underdark? 
Sorennar: umm…(LONG pause) back to the underdark, yes 
Sildar: to Menzo? 
Sorennar: if I'm lucky 
Sildar: just remember what I said, ok? 
Sorennar: hmm.  
Sildar: Had you already forgotten? It only happened last night 
Sorennar: I have a terrible memory, remind me 
Sildar: If you need help, call to the sky and I will come (or smth along those lines) Though if I am 
grappled, I fear I’m going to be stopped 
Sorennar: like you told Colt, get more practice, I can help you if you want 
Sildar: would you like to? 
Sorennar: Certainly 
-Sildar stands up, extending his hand for easy grapple- 
-Sorennar is confusion, he will wrap his arms around him as a hug, more to be in physical 
contact with him- 
-He failed the first one on purpose?- 
Sildar: you’re a lot stronger than I thought 
-He’s lying his ass off- 
Sorennar: am I now? No wonder you couldn’t get out of Hugh’s grapple 
Sildar: that hurts, that really did 
-He tries to break free now- 



-He breaks out, Sorennar rolls a nat 1 lol - 
 
Sorennar: thats’ more like it 
 
Sorennar: what should we talk about? 
Sildar: so nice weather we’re having 
bausfiulaefbuaubadukaLJABEAEGBALJGBLAEJGHLJGBVU SAME BRAINCELL 
Sorennar: it is, should I tell the cave story again/ 
Sildar: have you ever seen snow? Its quite nice 
Sorennar: I heard its cold and gets everywhere 
Sildar: yeah, but the beauty of it, or so I’ve heard, its very nice. Yknow if you join the lords 
alliance, maybe one day we can go there  
Sorennar: what are the chances of me being a lords alliance member? 
Sildar: I know many of the upper members, yknow I could be one myself (LMAO), but thats for 
the future 
-Sorennar is thinking about this- 
Sorennar: do their connections override their fear of me? Do lords alliance do background 
checks? 
Sildar: that is a great question, I’m sure they do  
AIFALJFSLJSLJGVB LMMMAAOOOOO 
Sildar: but we’ll make an exception, just for you. Trust me, I can guarantee your background or 
whatever you call it ‘goodness’  
Sorennar: really? What do you think they’ll find for Drow who lived in menzo for 100 years, and 
served he noble family for 80 
Sildar: well it should be fine 
Sorennar: well I told you I used to steal, not as poorly as colt 
Sildar: no one can as poorly as colt 
-Colt rolls over in his sleep- 
Sildar: why did you steal? 
Sorennar: because its fun, I love the fun 
-Sorennar be lying while smiling- 
Sorennar: I’ve been corned in alleys before, in cases of me or them, it’s always been me 
Sildar: you… living? 
Sorennar: No, DYING. Yes, living 
Sildar: Was it self defense? 



Sorennar: I suppose, with how much you’re valuing your reputation, what did you think of 
traveling with a drow? 
Sildar: if its trivial things like what hugh said (giving head), then I don’t give 2 fucks about it 
Sildar said that he only cares about stupid and untrue rumors like what Hugh was threatening to 
spread; he could not give two fucks about “ruining” his reputation with things like friendship with 
a drow.  
LIES 
Sorennar: Language 
Sildar: and if its for you, then it’s worth it 
-Sorennar pulls him by the neck again and kisses him- 
 
Sildar: you really need to warn me of that 
Sorennar: do I? 
Sildar: Yes I nearly choked 
Sorennar: alright then fair warning, I might do it again 
Sildar: I prefer if you don’t give a warning, actually  
Sorennar: you CT AS IF YOU NEVER kissed anyone before in your life, or gone further 
-Sorennar KISSES HIM AGAIN ALJBAFKBAFKJBK- 
Sildar: well you would be right about the gone further part 
-Sorennar looks over him- 
Sorennar: and you called us out for bad jokes? 
Sildar: I didn’t realize you were telling a joke 
-Sildar doesn’t know what to do right now- 
-Sildar is blushing- 
-Sorennar keeps going lmaaooooo sildar getting LAID- 
-Sildar is not uncomfortable, he’s awkward about it 
-Sorennar is surprised at what Sildar said, but is ok with it- 
Sorennar: I’ll guide you 
Sildar: -shaky voice- all right? 
 
-Sildar rolls  D20 FOR SEX??? AND GETS 17??? ON PERFORMANCE??!?! THEY HAVE 
SEGGS?!?! THEY HAVE SEXS OH MY GOD??!?!??!?!?! 
SORENNAR ROLLS A GODDAMN NAT 20!!! 25 TOTAL! THEY DO IT AGAINST THE TREE!!! 

 
 
 



AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 
ITS HAPPENING! IT HAPPENED 
OH MY GOD 
OH GOD OH FUCK 
FIRST LAYING OF THIS CAMPAIGN!! WAY TO GO SORENNAR! WAY TO GO SILDAR!! 
AYYYYY! 
Sildar was not a selfish lover 
 
-COMING back together, after FINISHING- 
Sorennar: did you have fun? 
Sildar: I don’t really have anything to base it off of, but I would say it is pretty enjoyable, yes 
Sorennar: well tomorrow night in stonehill, we’ll upgrade it to VERY 
Sildar: I’ll hold you to it 
 
-Remaining time is awkward idle chatter from Sildar- 
-Soren will be writing in his journal- 
 
The house passes, he goes to wake up Hugh 
Sildar steps over Colt and shoves hugh 
Sorennar: its time to watch 
Hugh: did anything happen? 
Sildar: not a single sound. 
;AINF;LAKNEFLAKN LIIEESSS 
 
-Hugh and Sorennar watch- 
 
Hugh greets Sorennar 
 
Hugh: Hi Sorennar 
Sorennar: Hello -he looks very happy- 
Hugh: anything happen while I was sleeping?- 
Sorennar: so many things, but- 
Hugh: oh like what? Sildar says nothing happened 
Sorennar: oh did he now? I see how I stand now 
:(( 
Sorennar: nothing of note then, I suppose 
Hugh: Okay! 
-Hugh starts watching, perception roll of 7 with disadvantage, Sorennar rolls 11- 
 



 
Watch times 
 
-Took break so I can eat, need to look over recording for Hugh and Sorennar convo, within 5 
hours of recording?- 
 
Sorennar: I wish my brothers and I grew up with your family, Hugh 
Hugh: really? Being a GOAT farmer? 
Sorennar: sure 
Hugh: at least you’d be able to run more than 3 minutes! I can always teach you to run more if 
you want 
Sorennar: I think I’m already rather good at running, but improvement is always good. You’re 
very easy to talk to, hugh 
Hugh: well thats good. Certainly would be awkward if I wasn't, not many people would talk to me 
then. So do you have any secrets? 
Sorennar: what brought this on? 
Hugh: well Colt told me a secret yesterday, idk why, and Esta was talking about secrets too, like 
oh my god so many secrets. So you do have a secret? 
Sorennar: pleasure is about give and take, what do you offer for secrets? stories? 
Hugh: I don’t have a lot of stories 
Sorennar: secrets then? 
Hugh: I don't have a lot of those either, I’m kinda like an open book. I can give you gold? 
Sorennar: no not really 
Hugh: Ok good I didn’t want to give you, I need it for my brain 
Sorennar: well I suppose my secrets will stay with me 
Hugh: if you think of something else, let me know 
-Sorennar mashes in silence- 
 
Sorennar: the thing you do when your friends and family are in danger, do you do that often? 
Hugh: yeah I usually get angry when yknow, shit hits the fan, as it were. Why? I think it would be 
convenient if I can get angry on command  
Sorennar: itd be a waste not to use it. How was your headaches? 
Hugh: I mean I had the dreams from last night with the mushrooms, but yeah they just suck 
Sorennar: not getting worse? 
Hugh: no it’s about the same. I hope it doesn't get worse, what if I turn into one of those things 
Sorennar: what things? 



Hugh: the things with the mushrooms all over it 
Sorennar: the mushrooms all over it? 
Hugh: yeah they kinda look fucked up, seemed alive. His mouth was moving, he was looking at 
me, but no one was behind 
Sorennar: wish I can help you more, sounds underdark related, but I can't quiet… 
Hugh: It's ok, I'm sure a doctor can figure it out. Maybe I can do the belly button thing again, it 
seems cool! 
Sorennar: it certainly was cool, you lit up half the underdark. With all your ailments, and you do 
go there, you might want to visit neverlight grove, a city of mushroom people, myconids, they 
might know something about this, can be the first place you look. Theyre friendly and docile. 
They like everyone but drow 
Hugh: they wont eat me? 
Sorennar: no 
Hugh: can I eat them 
Sorennar: i don’t think thats a good idea. Though don't mention me to them 
Hugh: they dont like drow? That seems liek a recurring thing 
Sorennar: with the amount of times the drow lied siege, I don’t blame them 
Hugh: no you’re good, bad drow are bad, but you’re a good drow 
-Sorennar starts crying, Hugh wipes away the tears- 
Sorennar: I’m NOT CRYING, smth fell in my eye, both of them 
Hugh: youre just lying, I was sitting here the whole time and nothing fell on you 
Sorennar: what about your hair 
Hugh: my hair is on my head, it didn’t fall 
-Sorennar runs his hand through his hair, some pieces coming out- 
Hugh: why did u pull out my hair?? 
Sorennar: my bad 
Hugh: put it back! 
-Hugh pats that area trying to put it back- 
 
Hugh and Sorennar discuss pets, Sorennar says they have large spiders, Hugh says these are 
not pets, what about doggos?? Do you have any cats? 
Sorennar mentions that they wont travel together forever, Hugh says he hopes to live another 
200 years, and he asks Sorennar how long he has left, Sorennar looks tired and says another 
500 years on average  
 
-Sorennar kisses Hugh on the sorehead bc he’s so sweet- 
 
Hugh asks sorennar if he saw a vampire, and to not lie to him, Soren says he didn’t and never 
wants to, Hugh says it was a trick question bc vampires aren't real. He asks the same about 
Tabaxi, Soren says he did in a small town in neverwinter. Hugh squints his eyes at Sorennar 
asking for description about the Tabaxi. Sorennar alludes that what he did in that town is illegal 
in many places (?? what), 
 



Hugh insists that there are no Tabaxi, only actual cats. Sorennar says that he hopes that’s not 
true, because then what he and the Tabaxi did would have been “very illegal”, implying that he 
fucked the Tabaxi.  
The tabaxi name is ‘Star in The Morning’, a dark furred female tabaxi 
 
 and maneuvers out of Hugh’s question about that. Sorennar says he will never lie to Hugh, he 
said while lying, and Hugh says its good to know about Sorennar’s lie. 
 
Hugh asks about Phandalin, and Sorennar happily begins to talk about the stage there, and how 
he’s excited for the stage, and hopes to see Hugh there cheering. Hugh asks if he knows how to 
play the drums, and Sorennar says he can teach Hugh. Sorennar begins reminiscing about 
fucking Henry that bitch, the moon elf, and says hes similar to Colt but he likes Colt more, 
naturally. He hopes to get to have sex with Henry, but doesnt say it to Hugh bc he thinks hes too 
baby. He says that Henry is infatuated with Sister smth, and was turned down publicly from her, 
causing him to mope about. Sorennar was hoping to show him a good time, Hugh says LIKE 
FUCKING!?!? To Sorennar's surprise. Hugh want to call him out on not letting Soren get laid, 
and Soren says he cant tell anybody about it, but Hugh wants to talk to Henry and be like HEY 
wake up BOI! 
Soren prefers to talk to Henry alone so he’s not overwhelmed 
 
Sorennar: by the way, speaking of fucking, -leans close- Sildar and I had a very insightful night 
Hugh: you guys FUCKED?? -surprise pikachu face- 
Sorennar: we did things 
Hugh: Do what exactly? 
Sorennar: this is information for you to do with, it’ll come to you naturally 
Hugh: oh ok, but why did u guys fuck? 
Sorennar: why not? It was fun 
Hugh: oh yeah that's true 
Sorennar: like I said you're very easy to talk to 
Hugh: don't worry your secret's safe with me, I won't tell a soul 
 
-Next hour and a half finishes peacefully, he finishes his matching by now- 
 
Hugh: so you plan on fuckin anybodyelse? 
Sorennar: EVERYBODY else 
Hugh: oh my, ok then you do you I guess, good luck 
Sorennar: oh why are you offering? 
Hugh: to fuck? I mean in the middle of the woods might be difficult, but sure in Phandalin, but 
right now I think it’s time to wake up Colt 
ALJFNLAJDNALDLJSDVLJVS 
Sorennar: I will hold you to that 
-He kisses him on the cheek- 
 
Hugh goes to wake Sildar for some reason?? Then Sorennar goes to wake Colt for watch 



Hugh taps him on the cheek: hey sildar hey sildar! Are you awake? 
Sildar: no? 
Hugh: but you’re talking. I heard you have a big dick so gj! 
Sildar: im a big dick? 
Hugh: no no you have a big dick! 
Sildar: oh you see it? -checks his pants- 
Hugh: no but I heard about it 
Sildar: what??  
Sildar: what did you tell him? (to Sorennar) 
Sorennar: I’m trancing 
Sildar: will I get a response in 2-3 business days? 
Sorennar: well for you, 1-2 days 
 
Sorennar: hey hey sildar 
Sildar-half asleep-: can you see my dick?? 
Sorennar: have room for another?  
Sildar: sure -rolls over- 
-Sorennar spoons with Sildar AGAIN AKLFNKJDKJSBD- 
​
 
 
-Colt and Lera watch- 
 

 
 
Colt and lera discuss the oddity of Hugh saying ‘nothing happened’ when something clearly 
happened, Colt says he’ll ask him in the morning. Lera and Colt aww over Sildar and Sorennar 
spooning in the corner, cuddling. Colt says he’s not surprised, and it makes sense. Lera recalls 
the ‘it was warm’ comment from the inn, and Colt affirms that it all makes sense now  
 
-lera is still upset over the sildar thing so she’s still stony- 
 
Colt asks about what happened, that it seemed scary and Sildar seemed upset, and he doesn’t 
wanna get inbetween it, but that Lera looks sad, and asks if he yelled at her since he did get 
yelled at and scolded by Sildar. Colt mentions that Sildar also yelled at Sorennar, but Lera 
corrects that by saying that Sorennar said that didn’t happen, and Colt says it feels unfair that 
now Sorennar won’t get yelled at as much (bc they’re spooning and Sildar has a soft spot for 



Soren). Lera asks what Sildar yelled at Colt for, who says ‘going in too much and dying in too 
much, well not dying but getting knocked out’. Colt gets worried that Soren will get more money 
from Sildar for doing the same job (after the development of them spooning), but Lera says she 
doesn’t think he’d do that, but hesitates and says that she thought she knew Sildar so she is 
unsure anymore  
 
-Lera looks upset and dejected again- 
 
Colt asks again what she means by that, and she says that she thought she knew the kind of 
mature person he is and that she doesn’t know anymore, then blames herself saying it’s her 
fault that he got angry, that she should have ended the conversation when he first got annoyed, 
that she should learn not to push people. Lera reminisces about the first time we all met, and 
mentions to Colt how she was asking about his parents and he had gotten annoyed, says its 
one of her bad habits to keep pushing even when it bothers someone, and that she doesn’t 
always realizes it, then apologizes to colt for it 
 
Colt the fuckin sweetheart reassures her that its FINE, because he had told her and she 
stopped, she promises to try and do better. Colt says its Sildar, it’ll be fine if she has another talk 
with him later since he seems like a forgiving person, because Colt has apologized and he didn’t 
yell at him again. Lera tells him that she did apologize and say sorry to him, but that he seemed 
cold, so maybe it was too soon so she’ll give it some time. Colt advices kindly to try again 
tomorrow or the day after, which Lera says seems wise  
 
Lera gently inquires, and says to him beforehand to tell her if he’s uncomfortable with the topic, 
about what sort of punishment would he give to those who might hold his parents captive or as 
slaves in the underdark and had horrible things done to them. Colt replies ‘their deaths’, 
however that comes about, to get it over with quick. Lera mulls over this thoughtfully 
 
Lera asks if he still wants to find his parents if they’re still in the underdark, and after 1-2 
seconds of hesitation he replies with a yes, as it would be better to know exactly what happened 
than to imagine countless possibilities over and over then asks her if she agrees. She says if 
her father was in a similar position, she’d do the same as what Colt is doing.  
 
Lera asks Colt about Luskan, where he was before Phandalin, and he says its a cold place, 
which is why he had the coat. Lera questions the coat, since it’s from his friend, and he says yes 
he met them there. Colt says he thinks they were nice people, one of them was like Hugh, he 
gets angry sometimes in a good way, only when he needed to, very strong, and that he never 
beat him in a duel.  
 
-Colt is looking put together for the most part, he does look saddened thinking about it- 
-Lera comes to sit next to him- 
 
To comfort and distract him, she puts on a puppet show for him with 3 dancing puppets, 2 
female and 1 male. Based on Lera’s performance, Colt can tell it’s a good performance 



Colt is surprised she can do puppetry, she lets him know she has 5, but not at once, only 4 at 
once. The last one is for backup in case one breaks 
 
Lera lets him know that it requires a lot of dexterity, making Colt excited because he has a lot of 
dexterity and asking if he can do it, Lera gives him the male puppet to try  
Colt: this seems fun! 
 
-Colt rolls performance with disadvantage, getting a 7- 
-He figures out how to move one arm, the rest of the body is flapping everywhere- 
 
Lera: GENTLY, gently colt 
-Lera begins instructing Colt how to move the puppets with finger placements on the wood for 
movement, demonstrating on her puppets- 
-Colt still doesn’t get it- 
-Lera guides his finger on the wooden blocks- 
 
Lera: lets try this! Lets make them move side to side 
-Colt makes them shake- 
 
Lera: you’re improving I think, why don't we try the jumping thing you did before as well? 
 
-Colt shakes it up and down, slowly- 
Colt: seems like a lot of work! 
Lera: once you get the hang of it, it can be fun! 
 
Lera does some simple movements with her two dolls in demonstration, and asks for Colt to try 
and make them sit on their knees, using his palm to make them sit 
 
-Colt follows instruction AMAZINGLY- 
-He tries to make them wave, and he does it as well!!- 
 
Colt: I don’t think it’s my thing though, but it’s very cool! 
Lera: you learned wood carving fast too 
Colt: I do like working with wood! 
-Sorennar rolls over in his sleep- 
 
-Lera puts puppets back in her bag-  
Lera: You did great! You got them to jump, sit, and wave a hand! that’ s pretty good 
Colt: mhhmm~ (pleased noise) 
 
-Colt looks much more comfortable now- 
 



Lera asks Colt what he wants to do in Phandalin when he gets there, Colt says since they’ll 
arrive at night then likely just find a bed and sleep. Lera glances at Sorldar sleeping, mentions 
how they’ll likely be sleeping in the same room, which Colt agrees to.  
 
Colt begins getting excited over Sorennar’s cooking, hopeful that maybe they can have more of 
it in Phandalin when they reach. He mentions that he didn’t eat anything bad from Sorennar, so 
he would eat and try anything Sorennar makes since ‘he has a certain level of fineass’ 
-Sorennar dies in his sleep from attention and happiness- 
 
Lera: beautiful weather huh? 
Colt: oh yeah  
 
Colt mentions that he believes in ghosts, and that they sometimes whisper to him. Probing 
more, Lera learns that its been happening more recently, once or twice a week 
 
To check if Colt is messing or telling the truth about ghost voices, Lera rolls a NAT 20 AYYY on 
insight, total of 25 
-Insight check: he is not messing with Lera- 
 
Kunj: He heard them rarely a while ago, like once every 5-10 months or a year, but now its been 
ramping up, in the last week he heard it every other day or everyday in the last week 
 
Colt: and yesterday idk what happened but after the fight, he heard a big screech around 6-7 
hours ago. I should have asked you about it, did you hear it? 
Lera: I did not, was it inside your head too? 
Colt: I mean, I guess, I don't know, I don’t know about ghosts! 
 
Colt says they’re whaling in his ear, for like half a second, but the one a couple hours ago was a 
screech for 2-3 seconds. When Lera inquires why he didn’t tell them before, bc they could have 
had Celaena who’s more experienced take a look if it’s a condition. Colt says that He got used 
to it so he didn’t say anything, and says that he brought it up before to people and they look at 
him like he’s crazy. Lera doesn't think he’s crazy, but it's worrying and concerning. He says there 
is No pain, just spooky.  
 
Colt: One time I was going up the stairs and I almost dropped my croissant! 
alfnal,fnaej,lfalj,bf 
 
Lera tries to reason that they’re ghosts, what can they do at the end of the day? They’re ghosts, 
apparitions, and can't mentally harm him. Colt says he heard  a story of a ghost taking 
someone’s body and it started killing other people. Lera asks Colt to please let them know if it 
happens again, and Colt thinks that the stronger he gets the more he hears them  
Frequency now: Once a day, never twice on the same day 
 
 



-Another hour passed by, for Lera its finally time to head back to sleep, leaving Colt alone- 
Lera goes to Sleep again, Colt just chills waiting and watching 
 
-Another two hours pass, the sun risen to the sky, it's time for everyone to get up 
 
It is 8AM, Colt goes to wake everyone up 
 
-Sorennar wakes up a bit wary, seeing where he is he calms down- 
Colt: is it warm?  
LMFAOOO 
Colt: its about to get more warm -points at the sun- 
 
As the morning comes through, clouds start forming  
Colt: nevermind there is no sun, its cloudy you can be happy! 
 
-It is still bright, but there are clouds- 
Sildar also gets up 
 
Colt wakes up Hugh 
 
Sildar comes to wake up Lera, FUCK MY LIIFFFEEE 
 
Sildar: Lera… it’s time to go 
-Lera gets up- 
Lera: s-sildar? OH SILDAR! GOOD MORNING!!  
-Sits up real quick- 
Sildar: good morning 
Lera: uhh–ahhhh… did u have a good sleep? 
Sildar: I did, how about you? 
Lera: aaah, yeah, it was good, it was nice 
 
-Sildar is looking pretty damn good- 
Lera: Oh sildar your skin looks glowy! Slept THAT well? 
Sorennar -walking past-: sleep had nothing to do with it 
Sildar: ANYWAY, I think it's time to get on the road, we can eat as we go 
 
Colt inquires about what happened last night, Sildar deflects and says that the Rothe look like 
they’re ready to go. Colt is Confusion and asks Sorennar to clarify, much to Hugh’s annoyance 
because he had told Colt that NOTHING happened 
Hugh: Do you WANT me to get angry? 
 
Lera picks up Gravy gently and puts him on the cart, giving it to Sorennar while she goes to 
drive again 
 



Sildar asks for some rations, and Lera offers some and hands it to sildar without looking at him 
Hugh: didn’t you have enough to eat last night?? 
Sildar: last nights’ dinner was good 
Hugh: I wasn’t talking about dinner I was talking about dessert 
/LIAENFLIHEALBEABKFWEA.KW AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA  
OH MY GOD HUGH  
 
 
Sorennar: how WAS dessert last night, Sildar? 
-Lera perks up- 
Lera: there was DESSERT? No one invited me for dessert? ;-; 
Hugh: yeah they had sausages :> 
Lera: wait that doesn't sound like dessert o.O what kinda dessert have you guys been eating 
Hugh: It is when it's filled with cream! 
Colt: I thought they had a sword fight at night! 
AWFKUAEFKAEBVEKBEFAKAEKBAEFKBAEFKAEFB 
-Lera catches on at this point- 
Lera: no wonder you had such a good glow sildar  
Sildar: the weather is quite nice! 
Colt: No it's not! Its cloudy! 
Hugh: it’s gloomy! 
 
 
 
Lera rolls NAT 20 again on perception, what in the FUCK is happening 

 
Sorennar also rolls a nat 1 

 
 



-For six hours, the trip is uneventful, sorennar mashes plants for most of the time, idle chatter, 
Hugh asks sorennar if he can do the speed potion, Hugh is playing with Truffles, he will let him 
bite him three times :),  sildar is running his hand through Sorennar’s head (which is why he has 
nat 1), Colt’s bing chilling- 
 
It is 3:09 PM 
 
Everyone around gravy will start sniffing the air and start looking into the wood, and in the forest 
Lera spots a humanoids in the woods 
 
We are 1 hour away from phandalin 
 
Lera points it out, and we see a foot, two legs of the humanoid, but its not moving 
Sorenanr says ofc we have to  
Gravy tries to rush over but Sorennar stops him with the leash, gives him some food 
 
We see a dwarf face down, same red hair as gundren, with no armor and blood 
 
Numerous cuts, bruises, and whip marks all over him His back is riddled with it, we can see 
some kind of scripture written on his back, and no one recognizes it. Besides the purple in the 
face, there are no marks on the face, but they begin on the neck and below. He also has bite 
marks on him as though a wolf had taken a bite. Its a gruesome bite 
 
Sorennar drops sildar’s arm and runs over, the words are on his back. It is easy to tell it looks 
like gundren, but its not him. We notice that he has a necklace on, and around it is a symbol 
gundren was wearing 
 
Lera asks Sildar if he knows him, Sildar says he’s not too familiar but Gundren did have siblings, 
could be his brother. Tharden or Nundro 
 
Both Lera and Soren can tell that the wounds span over days, assume he was tortured from 3-5 
days, but he himself died like a day ago, estimation 
As we look at his face, there is a very light purple tone mixed with his skin color, and likely 
poisoned  
 
He was poisoned, then was freed to let go and run 
 
The back is written on drow 
 
Sorennar: horrible things wish not to repeat to an audience. This all but confirms its drow 
involvement. Sildar, to pursue this is like pursuing a dragon, we die 
Sildar: if we dont do this, this will happen to everyone 



Sorennar: why? For all you spew about “good, redeemable drow”, the fact that they might get 
the artifact is such a horrible thought that you would throw away your own life to stop it? That 
they’d get the artifact? Such a horrible thought you’d (??) 
I need to check recording for this 
THANK YOU for doing it 
 
Sorennar: how do I get it through all of your thick heads that it makes no difference traveling to 
save gundren, there is 0% chance you can make a difference against the drow! 
Hugh: if what sildar is saying is true, then we die either way. Might as well try 
Lera: he’s right 
Sildar: I agree, but this isn't something I can ignore. Im fine if none of you want anything to do 
with this, but at least I have to 
 
Lera: sildar, does his brother live in phandalin? 
Sildar: yes, they live in phandalin 
Hugh: then we should bing his body back, I’ll carry him 
 
 

 
Sorennar insight to check on Hugh if he’s sad, since Hugh is sad that it is a dwarf, and he has 
brothers too  
 
Lera goes to get the tarp to wrap the body, Sorennar steps away and pukes, much to Colt’s 
alarm. Sorennar tells colt to go take a look at the body and he’d be sick too, then Colt gives 
Gravy to Sorennar 
 
Sorennar suddenly changes, and says that the black spider must stop, apologizes for his earlier 
outburst, go to phandalin and see if the other brother is safe  
 
Sildar mentions that its safe to assume that they both got killed (brothers), but we need to head 
to Phandalin and check 
 
Hugh declares that he doesn’t want to be in a war, but he’ll do anything he can to stop a war 
 
Colt says that he’ll help because he can’t leave his family (us) behind. He asks if he can steal 
from the bad guys, and Sildar says its not stealing if its from bad people 
 



Sildar says to bury the brother, Hugh says to fuck that, he’ll hold the body outside the town if he 
has to, a brother should bury the brother. Lera and Colt agree, Sildar and Sorennar dont. 
 
In the end, we will do it the dwarf way, and we will take the body outside the town, if we don’t 
find rockseeker brother, we will find Hugh and let him know so he can bury him, as it is not 
tradition to bury him in the same spot he was killed, and a brother must bury a brother 
 
Lera: what was written on the back? Was it only curses? 
Sorennar: Insane ramblings to… (catches himself) religious ramblings of the drow 
Lera: to lolth? 
Sorennar: to lolth 
Lera: would this be a normal way for a sacrifice  
Sorennar: There were no cuts on his throat, do you? The words read as a warning, they were 
religious 
Lera: So it was a warning. 
 
We are traveling again, sorennar is curled in a corner, Hugh put his backpack in the cart so he 
can continue carrying rockseeker brother behind the cart 
 
After an hour of silence passes by, we see the road that was previously surrounded by woods 
open up to groups of trees scattered around, a lot of hilly areas, and we see the town of 
Phandalin 
 
It is 4:41:12 PM right now  
 

 
 
Sorennar stays behind with Hugh 
 
Sildar, Lera, and Colt head to the inn where he suspects they are 
As we pass, we see a sign saying ‘Barthon’s provisions’ , a blacksmith, a religious shrine, then 
around to the stone hill inn 
 
As we approach, Sildar takes the lead and heads towards a guy named Toblen 



 

 
 
Colt talks to them, asking about the rockseeker brothers,  
Toblen lets us know they left around a week ago, they seemed really excited, left and never 
came back, they still have bills to pay. Colt asks if anyone saw them, and Toblen says he’d like 
to know because he needs the bills paid, asks if we know where he is. Colt sas we found where 
of them, and Toblen is like they drink so much, like 10 gold, and Colt stops him before he can 
say more things and say he’s dead. Toblen asks if Colt killed him, Colt denies and is like we are 
looking for him. Toblen says they were going up the triboard trail a week ago. Lera asks if they 
were talking about where they’re heading, he says he doesn’t know, she asks about Gundren, 
and he says he doesn’t know.  
Toblen says if they find the other brother, to please let him know, 10 gold aint cheap 
 
We go back to Hugh and Sorennar to let them know, Lera says that Sildar’s guess was right, 
that if they were traveling together they were likely taken together, whether the other brother is 
dead is up for grabs, but we should bury the body regardless 
 
In the meantime, the 12 mins we were gone, Hugh finds a suitable burial spot just in case, 
breaking up rocks, and let’s soren carry some rocks.  
 
Sildar: its no luck, both brothers left together a week ago, Toblen let us know 
Hugh: it is what it is, we can bury them and either brother can come visit 
 
Hugh says that if he had timed, he would have found where his home was and take him there to 
be buried ;-; HUGH MY BELOVVEEDDD 
 
We bury his body in the tarp, everyone minus sorennar, Hugh rolls 16, it's a shitty situation 
overall, so he buries it quick. Sorennar goes to confirm again the horrible words on his back as 
a way to motivate it, then goes to help us bury 



It takes 10 mins to make a decent sized 4ft hole. Hugh layers rocks on the bottom, then the 
body, then other rocks, and finally the dirt. Everyone helps with this 
 
Sildar offers to buy us food, and that we should go rest. Sorennar says he will go and meet 
some people, as Hugh knows (that bitch Henry), and Hugh asks if he needs company, worried 
about ppl being racist. Hugh tells Sorennar that if anyone gives him a hard time, to please let 
him know, Colt chimes in and says to let us ALL know 
 
Sildar asks when he’ll be back, so the food can be ready by then 
 
Sorennar takes his lute, takes off his coat and folding it carefully agai. He asks who wants to 
safeguard it, and Lera accepts.  
 
Sildar says that for today we rest and talk, and tomorrow we handle all payments 
 
Sorennar will leave for 30-40 minutes then come back (he’s trying to be cheerful), then leaves 
brisk walking. Hugh will try to keep paying attention to where Sorennar goes 
 
After 5 mins, everyone’s mood is soured, and we reach the inn 
 
Hugh goes to talk to Toblen, standing on the stool, asks him for juice, toblen says there is 
tomato juice, hugh asks for actual juice, and he says there are some apples to make juice. Hugh 
asks for a flaglen of juice, MUCH to Sildar’s worry, but Hugh retorts that he would pay himself 
since Sildar owes him already. Sildar asks for rooms and to open a tab under him 
 
Toblen is worried about the cost bc he doesn’t know, and Colt says that he read in a book that a 
flagon is 2 silver, he rolls 10 in deception 
 
Toblen goes into the kitchen to see how much a cup costs. ‘HENRY? But you were supposed to 
go home! You werent supposed to stay here! Go home’  
THAT MF BITCH IS HERE!! 
Henry: ‘Yeah I’ll leave, ill take what I can, have a good day!’ 
He is a blond haired sun elf, with a tattoo, he’s wearing clean clothes and a rope tied with 
various tools hanging from it 
 



 
 
IMPORTANT TRANSCRIPT INFO NEEDED!!! 
HENRY AND LERA CONVO!! MUST WRITE! 
WHAT IN THE FUCK SORENNAR?!?! 
 
Heny: hey if you don’t mind, please let me through 
Hugh: HEY! 
Henry: Yes? 
Hugh: You Henry? 
Henry: I am? 
Hugh: How do you feel about drow?  
Henry: fine…? 
Hugh: ok carry on 
Henry: wait… you (at Lera), are you friends with Sorennar? 
Lera: I am! 
Colt and Hugh: are YOU friends with Sorennar? 
Henry: we met like a week ago, did he get the information on wave echo cave? Are you also 
with candlekeep? 
Lera: wait, I’m sorry can you repeat that? information…? 
Henry: he said he was going up to neverwinter to get some easy information about wave echo 
cave, you know the myth that goes around here, apparently a powerful artifact, are you all with 
him? 
Lera: we are with him, yes…. 
Henry: oh how did it go! Did you get the information you’re looking for? 
Lera -slowly as her brain start whirring-: no, not yet… Henry… 



-Lera insight checks Henry while exchanging glances with the group, Sildar is so confused he’s 
quiet and trying to think. Henry is telling the truth, no hint of lying through his voice- 
Lera: we did come here with Sorennar, it’s funny actually he was coming to see you 
Henry: really? 
Lera: I believe he was heading to your residence on the east side, he was really excited to see 
you again  
Henry: he should know my house is on the west 
-Hugh tries to leave- 
Lera: Wait, Hugh, wait hold on…. Henry, you said that Sorennar was asking about Wave echo 
cave a week ago yes? Did he mention anything else? 
Henry: I met him for a day, I don’t know when he left but he said he was going up to neverwinter, 
he said there was easy information or something? I’m guessing he met you all? 
Lera: so 10 days ago, Sorennar left. At the time, were the Gundren brothers in Phandalin? 
Henry: No they came after, like a day or two? Then they got word and left. Hadn’t had a chance 
to chat with them before they left. Are you looking for them?  
Lera: We are. Henry, did Sorennar seem excited or anxious about finding this wave echo cave? 
Henry: he asked me a lot about it 
Lera: And what do you know? 
Henry: that it’s a myth, he said that he had to research it, but didn’t find anything about it. Are 
you not with candlekeep? (city that holds lots of information, a library) 
Lera: Sorennar is very cultured and knowledgeable about many things, no doubt -she 
exchanges looks again with Colt, Hugh, and Sildar-  
Henry: he has to be to be a researcher, I heard its hard to get in there 
Lera: oh he is very intelligent. Did he mention what kind of researcher he was to you? I’m sorry I 
have terrible memory 
Henry: He said he was a candlekeep researcher looking into the wave echo cave 
Lera: I see 
Henry: yall should know this? Are you not helping him? Are you recruites 
Lera: you can say we’re something like that, we’re on a mission I suppose,  
-Toblen walks in with apple juice for Hugh- 
Hugh: How much? 
Lera: Henry, what's on the east side if you don't mind? 
-Hugh and Colt are confusion at this point ;-;  - 
Henry: there is a farm, there's the woods, some residence, don't know what you’re looking for 
really 
Lera any specific residences, anyone of importance in the town? 
Henry: there is Alderleaf Farm, though they’re not important they are a farming family. Although 
they did go missing a couple days back, still looking back 
Lera: You said they went missing? How long ago was this? 
Henry: A couple days, like,, hmm 405 days? We don't know what happened to them, their son 
didn’t, he was hiding and idn’t talking too much though. If you wanna look into that you might 
want to talk to him  
Lera: he’s not talking to the townspeople at all?  
Henry: he’s very shut in yeah 



Lera: I see, what’s his name, the son? 
Henry: their son’s name was Carp 
 
Toblen: oh sorry I was having trouble thinking of the price, but five silver for the entire thing? 
-That is eight cups total in amount- 
Hugh: sure 
-Gives him 5 silver- 
Toblen: sure I will be right back! 
-As he walks away, we hear a loud bang- 
Toblen: AW FUCK!  
-He stubbed his toe- 
 
Henry: when soren comes back, tell him to come by my house and he wanted something nailed 
and I can take a look at it 
AKFBAKBFAGUBEAIEGBIUAFLIBAEIBVSDHBISVDBHVSDBISVIBVSLI 
Henry: He said he needed some nailing and I said sure, he said I’d have to wait until he came 
back  
-Sildar is not paying attention at all, he looks VERY upset still thinking- 
Lera: Henry where are you going to go now, are you leaving? 
Henry: yeah I’ll go to my house, you know that shrine you passed? I’m assuming you passed it, 
everyone passes it, it’s in the center of the town! Yeah that's the shrine of luck, and my house is 
like two behind it, it has a brown roof. Sorennar knows where it is 
Lera: We’ll pay you a visit maybe after with Sorennar… 
Henry: yeah it’d be nice to have some company 
Lera: and you’re a carpenter yes? 
Herny: a handyman, I fix things here and there 
Lera: well its nice to see another sun self! (half) 
Henry: nice to meet you too, and for the rest of you, hope you have luck in finding this wave 
echo cave  
Lera: maybe henry don't mention wave echo cave to other people, since yknow it's a myth and 
all  
Henry: oh is it a secret? 
Lera: it isn’t a secret so much as a myth that some people would want to go and check for it 
Henry: people have been doing that for years, they haven’t found it, a lot of people have 
forgotten about it now though. A lot of adventurers used to come looking for it, around a 
hundred years ago, and people have forgotten it for the most part, Only reason I know is 
because I’m like 200 years old. They told me that when I was a child! 
Lera: thank you so so much Henry, and again a pleasure to meet you 
Henry: yeah I’ll see you in the morning again! I still have some things in the kitchen, so if ya’ll 
are here, lets have some food 
Lera: yeah it’ll be great to catch up maybe with Sorennar too… 
Henry: oh yeah, I still need to know what he needs nailing. I don’t know how long ya’ll will be 
staying here, but might wanna take care of that soon. Is it like a cart? Only thing I can imagine 



Lera: We did come here on a cart but the cart is fine. We’ll have to ask Sorennar what he 
means, maybe he needs a specific thing nailed 
Henry: What can you nail other than some wood? Ya’ll have a nice evening, see you in the 
morning! Save a spot for me 
Lera: yeah! Good night 
Henry: Good night! 
Colt: bye buddy  
 
-Henry exists- 
 
Lera: Sorennar went to the west side, he said he’ll come back, yes? 
-Toblen walks in- 
Toblen: watch the door watch the door, here you go got your cups! 
UHAFBEAGKJBAEBKSGBKS 
Hugh: I didn’t need a cup, but thank you 
Toblen: you want me to put it back in? 
Hugh: no its fine someone will use it in a manner of seconds  
 
Sildar: Listen, Toblen, can you tell everyone out? Like, everyone. Just tell them I’ll pay them 
later on, just get them out. 
Toblen: is everything okay? 
Hugh: Why are we still here? 
Lera: Sorennar will be back and we need to discuss some things, Hugh 
Sildar: I think if we’re going to confront this, we need to do it here. At least he won’t be able to 
run 
Lera; i think we should at least give- 
Toblen: whhaaatttsss going on? 
Lera: excuse me Toblen one second. Sildar- 
Toblen: oh okay :( 
-Toblen sits by the door looking at us AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA I’M SO SORRY TOBLEN MY 
BELOVED!- 
-Gravy is being held by the Sildar as a stress ball- 
 
 
Lera: First this is Sorennar we’re talking about yeah? Let’s give him a chance to explain, I… 
-Sildar looks ANGRY. Daddy CHILL- 
Lera: Sildar, let's take a breather, yes? This is sorennar we’re talking about, we know him- 
Sildar: he KNEW of wave echo cave, then he went and joined this quest 
Lera: he could have heard about it and wanted to stop it as well, lets not jump to assumptions 
Sildar: he said he was a researcher from candlekeep! 
Lera: I’m aware, maybe… -sigh-.. We don't have all the information, we need to talk to Sorennar 
first 
Sildar: I agree, we need to talk, but we do it here, so when it happens he doesn’t run. He should 
not know this information, he’s definitely not a researcher from candlekeep 



-Lera mentally recalls what Aien was saying before- 
Lera: We might not know him too well, but let's at least give him the benefit of the doubt and let 
him explain, don’t assume bad intentions until it reveals itself. Does that sound good? 
Sildar: I won’t assume anything, but we are questioning him 
Lera: Yes, I think we need some answers, and you saw the way he was when he saw the body, 
he was worried about us, and he did tell us that he wanted to help in stopping the black spider. I 
don't think he was lying then, do you think he was lying? 
Sildar: I know he was lying about being a researcher and knowing about the cave before joining 
this quest, I’m not going to assume anything until I hear it from him. Speaking of that, do you  
know Zone of Truth? 
Lera: I know of it but I can’t use it today 
Sildar: can one of you talk to Sister Garaele? Tell her that you’re looking for the zone of truth in 
my name, she should be able to get one, but the price I’m scared of, but who the fuck cares at 
this point 
Lera: sildar sildar, why don’t you have some juice? (to destress and calm him :( poor sildar ) 
Sildar: some juice?? 
Lera: I don’t think we should be thinking of ,,, negatively, right now, lets… 
Sildar: the zone of truth is the best way to confirm 
Lera: yes but breathe with me sildar, no need to get angry yet  
Sildar: can one of ya’ll talk to her? If not I’ll do it myself, but I’d like to be here for when he 
returns  
Lera: If colt and Hugh don’t want to, I can go 
-Hugh is kinda in like a haze, almost in disbelief, he wasn’t expecting this- 
-Colt is in the same condition, perplexed about the reveal and the whole thing, he was not 
expecting this- 
-Hugh hops out of his stool, grabs his flagon with his apple juice- 
 
 
-Soren side- 
 
He walks to the forest, looking for a black spider that he apparently has been doing 
everyday/night, he sees 8 eyes shimmering, from the shadows he sees a fuckin massive black 
spider step into the fading sunlight going into the trees, revealing itself  
 
Sorennar kneels so fuckin fast as soon as he sees it 
 
Black spider: sorennaarrrr, it's quite nice to finally see you again 
Sorennar: good evening, master, your humble servant has so much to report 
-murderous chucke from black spider- 
 



 
 
It is now 5:38 PM  
 
 


